
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

SUSSEX COUNTY SOLID WASTE ADVISORY COUNCIL 

 

MINUTES 

 

MAY 11, 2010 

 
The meeting was called to order at 7:31 p.m. by Chairman Jim Landrith.  The meeting is 
held in compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act, NJSA 10:4-1 of 1975, as 
amended.  Present were: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: James Landrith, Chairman, Andover Borough 
  Eleanor Mensonides, Vice Chairman, Vernon 
  William Koellhoffer, Byram Township 
  Richard Pumphrey, Frankford Township 
  Jason Doyle, Franklin Borough 
  Allan Esenlohr, Green Township 
  Chris Kelly, Hamburg Borough 
  William Sanford, Hampton Township 
  Robert Schultz, Hardyston Township 
  Ken Jaekel, Newton  
  Jo-Ann Williamson, Sandyston Township 
  John Armeno, At-Large 
  James Wright, At-Large 
     
MEMBERS EXCUSED: Edith McGrath, Lafayette Township 
  Bob Smith, Andover Township 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Phillip Crabb, Freeholder  
  Eric Snyder, Planning Director 
  Jim McDonald, Health Department 
  Reenee Casapulla, Recycling Coordinator 
  Tom Varro, SCMUA 
  Neal Leitner, Program Manager 
 
 



 

 

2 

 

 

 

MINUTES 
 

A motion was made by Ms. Mensonides to approve the minutes of April 13, 2010 with 
Mr. Varro’s amendment to his report included.  It was seconded by Mr. Armeno.  All 
were in favor; motion carried.   
 

CHAIRMAN’S REMARKS 
 

None 
 

REPORTS 

 

A.  SCMUA Update – Mr. Varro reported on SCMUA’s tonnages for 2010 FY (Dec. 1 
thru May 1).  He said a total of 33,472 tons were received at the facility.  This is a 4.3% 
decrease from last year at this time, but it is the smallest decrease that has been seen in 
recent years.  Mr. Varro said hopefully we will start to see an upward trend here due to 
the June 1 implementation of flow control.  He said the average tip fee continues to in-
crease; up another 3.3%.  This is typical at this time of year because of the types of waste 
received and the blended rates.  Mr. Varro said the commissioners will be meeting next 
Wednesday to consider a raise in the tip fee structure.  He said we have a projected $3M 
deficit that has to be made up in three months and in order to do that the anticipated tip 
fee is $122 a ton, just to break even.  He said looking back to the flow control years of 
1994, 1995 and 1996, the tip fee is about $118; we’re going to be in that ballpark, which is 
the number if we do not get any State aid.  Mr. Armeno asked when that will take af-
fect.  Mr. Varro said the anticipated date, based on the commissioners’ vote, is June 1.  
Mr. Varro said there have been some meetings involving Senator Oroho, who is work-
ing on our behalf, but the initial feedback has not been promising.  Mr. Armeno asked 
how that will impact the towns that have contracts with haulers going out of County.  
Mr. Varro said he will defer that to the Health Department who is the enforcing agency 
for flow control.   
 
Mr. McDonald said that when the DEP approved the amendment to the SWMP, the 
municipalities had 90 days to relook at their contracts and come into compliance with 
the program.  He said the County Administrator and the Health Administrator have 
extended that date past the 90 days to June 1.    From that point on, if waste is going out 
of County, it’s a violation.   
 
Chairman Landrith asked how much of the $122 is being allocated to the debt service.  
Mr. Varro said the debt service portion is about $58 a ton; typically, the debt service on 
our operations is a little more than 50%.   



 

 

3 

 
Mr. Esenlohr said the contractor in Green Township is paying $70 a ton in Warren 
County; that amounts to an increase of $52 a ton, plus the additional trucking.  He said 
that is an increase in taxes.  Mr. Esenlohr said it really upsets him to think we’re losing 
$900 a day in methane going up in smoke.  Mr. Varro said he thinks the problem that 
authority is facing is due to the fact that many of the municipalities have sent their 
waste to a cheaper facility.  He said if tonnage was coming in, the deficit would be less 
and the tip fee increase would be less.  Mr. Varro also said it’s not a tax increase; it’s a 
user based fee.  Mr. Varro said this is the fairest way we’ve come up with, and he feels 
that the methane burn-off has been adequately discussed.   
 
B.  Recycling Coordinator – Ms. Casapulla wanted to extend her thanks to those who 
participated in the events that SCMUA has hosted.  She feels the people who were in-
volved, either as vendors or members of the public, helped make each event a success.  
She then gave a brief review of those events, which were outlined in last month’s min-
utes.   
 
Ms. Casapulla said SCMUA’s Earth Day Program on April 22 involved both public and 
private agencies and drew 350 students from Sussex County schools.   This event con-
sisted of numerous interactive displays, tours and activities.   
 
On April 30, the County hosted a Food Waste Recycling Forum at SCCC.  It was a prac-
tical application involving vendors and case studies of how to handle food waste if you 
are a food waste generator such as schools, colleges and restaurants.  There was good 
involvement of local vendors who are actually making items that could be used for food 
waste composting. 
 
On May 1 SCMUA hosted their first E-Waste Collection Program for 2010.  This event 
drew over 800 cars, which is the most on record, and over 43 tons were brought in on 
that day alone, which is also a record.  This brings the YTD total of tons collected at the 
MUA to 109.   
 
Hopatcong also had an E-Waste Collection Day on May 1.  Mr. Armeno said a report 
will be sent to Ms. Casapulla shortly.  Byram is going to be having an E-Waste Collec-
tion Day on June 26.  They are accepting items from any municipality in the County.   
 
Ms. Casapulla said Household Hazardous Waste Day is to be held on June 5.  Flyers re-
garding this event are available tonight on the front table; Ms. Casapulla will also be 
sending out an e-bulletin.  Schools and government agencies are invited to attend on 
June 4.   
 
C.  State Liaison – not present – no report 
 



 

 

4 

 

DIRECTORS’ REPORTS 

 

A.  Eric Snyder – Mr. Snyder said a report will be issued shortly regarding the trip the 
subcommittee took to Covanta, the Warren County incinerator.  The only other issue 
Mr. Snyder mentioned was the amendment to the Plan for Back Thru the Future, Inc., 
which will be discussed under New Business.   
 
B.  Herb Yardley – Mr. McDonald reported that the Health Department participated in 
Earth Day at the MUA.  The department also had representatives at the Food Recycling 
Forum.  He said one of the key points of the day was made by one of the doctors who 
presented.  He said if the money we spent on Cash for Clunkers was spent instead to 
buy a recycling food waste composter for each university (community college through 
large school), the amount of emissions we would’ve reduced by doing that alone would 
be astronomical.  The slides he presented made it look like common sense.  He said all 
we did was waste money.  Mr. Esenlohr added to that statement.  He said we’ve lost 
millions of dollars in used car parts which has seriously hurt the salvage business.     
 
Mr. McDonald said he wouldn’t be surprised to see a requirement to recycle food waste 
within the next five to ten years.   
 
Mr. McDonald said the department will be attending the Household Hazardous Waste 
Day.  He said representatives from the Hazmat program will be present just in case 
there is a spill.   
 
Regarding the Health Department’s solid waste program, work is currently being done 
with their IT person to put information on the website.  Mr. McDonald said in April a 
forum was held with the solid waste haulers which generated many questions, and the 
department is trying to put together a FAQ page based on those questions.   
 
Mr. McDonald said the department will be doing 300+ surveys; the first quarter only 55 
were done, so they are a little short of their goal.  He said the department has begun 
their solid waste facility inspections.  Since the DEP has reduced our money, they have 
reduced the number of solid waste facilities to be inspected.  Mr. McDonald said the 
Health Department is not inspecting the MUA, Grinnell’s MRF, Class B, and Class A 
landfills; the State will be conducting those inspections.   
 
CORRESPONDENCE 

 

A. April Grinnell Recycling Recovery Report – no questions or comments 
 
B. Monthly Revenue and Appropriation Report for SCMUA from Sussex County – 
 no questions or comments 



 

 

5 

 
C. SCMUA’s Monthly Solid Waste and Appropriation Report – no questions or 
 comments 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

 

None 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Resolution Re:  Amendment to the Solid Waste Master Plan re: Back Thru the Future, 
Inc. facility in Hardyston – Ms. Mensonides made a motion to approve this resolution 
and send the recommendation to the Freeholders.  Mr. Doyle seconded it.  A roll call 
vote was taken.  Results are as follows:  J. Landrith – yes; W. Koellhoffer – yes; R. Pum-
phrey – yes; J. Doyle – yes; A. Esenlohr – yes; C. Kelly – yes; W. Sanford – yes; R. 
Schultz – yes; K. Jaekel – yes; J. Williamson – yes; E. Mensonides – yes; J. Armeno – yes; 
J. Wright – yes.   
 
Ms. Mensonides reported on the SWAGERS subcommittee.  She said the group toured 
the Warren County incinerator on April 27.  A copy of the presentation that was made 
on that date will be discussed at next month’s SWAC meeting.   
 
Ms. Mensonides asked for authorization to send a letter to the new commissioner of the 
DEP asking him to give us some ideas or direction as to what the DEP plans are, and 
where they are at this point in the new administration.    Ms. Mensonides asked the 
committee to please get in touch with either her or Mr. Leitner with any questions or 
suggestions about ideas for the future of recycling. 
 
Chairman Landrith thanked Ms. Mensonides and Ms. McGrath for organizing the Co-
vanta (Warren County incinerator) visit.   
 
OPEN TO PUBLIC 

 

Freeholder Crabb addressed the committee regarding the introduction of flow control.  
He said the Freeholders are very aware of it; they know what the ramifications are, and 
they, not SWAC or the MUA, will be receiving any feedback.  He said it’s going to be 
tough, and is in agreement with the money coming out of usage fees rather than out of 
the value of one’s house.  Freeholder Crabb said people talk about bubbles; the first 
bubble was the dot com bubble that burst; the next bubble was the housing bubble that 
burst and that’s why we find ourselves here; people are saying the next bubble to burst 
will be government.  He said we, the Freeholders, “have had our thumbs on the pulse of 
this for some time”.  He also wanted to let the committee know that meetings were held 
late last night with representatives from the MUA and the County “to see if there are 



 

 

6 

any three dimensional ways we can architect this through finance”.  Freeholder Crabb 
said the focus is on the next three years; that’s when the debt service is at a level that the 
State is not going to cover and it’s going to fall to the County.  After 2013 the debt ser-
vice falls off significantly; so the focus is on the next three years because that’s what is 
behind the $122 tipping fee.  The Freeholders are trying to see if there is any way to re-
configure that, and any discussion with regard to reconfiguration must be done with 
this committee and include what the road map will be beyond 2017.   
 
Freeholder Crabb also said, Camden is getting $14M dollars from Trenton and they’re 
not even using it.  He said we met (at every level) the criteria that was used for sending 
that money to Camden; so he asked why wouldn’t we be eligible.  It caught Trenton’s 
attention.  The fact that they’re sending money somewhere indicates that there is room 
for appeal.  Freeholder Crabb said we’re working on it; it’s an ongoing process; we’re 
meeting here locally to determine if there are things we can do on our side.  He wants 
the committee to know that things are very active, but it’s going to be tough; at least 
we’re getting into a configuration where we can solve the problem.   
 
Ms. Mensonides said it is good to know that the Freeholders are going to support us.   
 
Chairman Landrith mentioned a calculation he did about the $60 increase.  He said in 
Sussex County, it’s roughly one ton of waste per household, and an extra $60 over 365 
days is about 17¢ a day.   
 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There was no further business to be discussed at this time and a motion was made by 
Mr. Armeno to adjourn.  The motion was seconded by Ms. Mensonides and carried.  
Meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m. 


